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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Silvan Innovation Labs Private Limited
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Silvan Innovation Labs Private
Limited (“the Company”). which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement
of Profit and Loss, including the statcment of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“Iinancial Statements™).

[n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“ the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022 , its Profit
including Other Comprchensive Income, its Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SA”) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit matters:

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
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context of our audit of the Standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon. and we do not provide a scparate opinion on these matters.

Intformation Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Dircctors is responsible for the other information. The other information
compriscs the information included in the Board report, but does not include the financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In conncction with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If; based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date
of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act, with respect to the preparation of these IFinancial Statements that give a true and fair view of
the Financial Position. Financial Performance including Other Comprehensive Income, Cash Flows
and the Statement Of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provision of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irrcgularities; selection and application of the appropriate accounting
policics; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
cffectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and [air presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
frece from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In prepuring the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
abilily to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the

Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The Board of Directors is also responsible for oversecing the Company’s financial reporting
Process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are (0 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are {ree from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

«  Identify and asscss the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or crror. design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit cvidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
crror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosurcs made by management.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. I we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
il such disclosures arc inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may causc the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,
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+ bvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the inancial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a mannet that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative maleriality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
cvaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in infernal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may rcasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine thosc matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therelore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
conscquences ol doing so would reasonably be cxpected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of scction 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Anncxure A™ a stalement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2

As required by Scction 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were nceessary [or the purposes of our audit;

b) [n our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as appears [rom our examination of those books;
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'he Balance Sheet. Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are
in agreement with the books of account;

[n our opinion., the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards
specified under section 133 of the Act:

On the basis of written represcntations received from the directors as on March 31,2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31,2022, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these financial statements and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer 1o our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the Company to its directors during the vear is in accordance with the provisions of section
197 of the Act.

With respecet to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rules 11 of the Companics (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion
and Lo the best of our information and according to the cxplanations given to us and as
represented by the management:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact on its
financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there werce any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) Management has represented to us that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loancd or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other persons or entitics, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, dircctly or indircetly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identificd in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
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Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimatc Beneficiarics;

(b) Management has represented (o us that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief
no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, securily or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(c) Based on our audit procedure conducted that are considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that cause us
to belicve that the representation given by the management under paragraph (2)
(h) (iv) (a) & (b) contain any material misstatement.

v.  The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

FFor JAIN NIKHII. N & CO.
Chartered Accountants P i
Firm Ryggistration no. 155926W /o =q

NikRiTN Jain
Partner
Membership No.: 116643

UDIN  :3\L643 QA\H\Jrc/@?O

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 21,2022
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF SILVAN INNOVATION LABS PRIVATE LIMITED

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on other legal and regulatory

requirements” of our report of even date)

1) a)

b)

d)

2) Q)

D)

OO ADDRYESS

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment on the basis of
available information;

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
asscts on the basis of available information.;

As explained to us, Property, Plant & LEquipment have been physically verified by the
management in a phased periodical manner, which in our opinion is reasonable, having
regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such physical verification.;

According to the information and explanations given to us the Company does not own
any immovable properties, Further, immovable properties which are taken on lease, the
lease apreements are duly executed by the Company;

According to information and explanations given to us and books of accounts and records
examined by us, Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or
intangible assets or both during the year;

According to information & explanations and representation given to us by the
management. no proceedings have been initiated or arc pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and
rules made thercunder;

As explained to us and on the basis of the records examined by us, in our opinion,
physical verification of the inventorics have been conducted at reasonable intervals by
the management and having regard to the size and nature of business of the Company and
nature of its inventory, the coverage and procedures of such verification by the
management is appropriate. As explained to us and on the basis of the records examined
by us, the value of the discrepancics noticed on physical verification by management
were not material and did not exceed 10% or more in aggregate of each class of
inventory. ;

As per the books of accounts and records examined by us, no working capital limits in
excess of [ive crore rupcees, in aggregale, from banks or financial institutions on the basis
of sccurity of current assets has been sanctioned. Therefore, clause (ii) (b) of Paragraph 3
of the Order is not applicable to the Company;
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The Company has not made any investments in or any guarantee or seeutity provided or any
toans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, hence clause (111) of Paragraph
3 ol'the Order is not applicable to the Company.; ;

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provxded to us, the
Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security to the parties
covered under Section 185 of the Act accordingly provisions of Section 186 of the Act is not
applicable to the Company during the year;

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
within the meaning of provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Act and the rules framed there under. Therefore, the clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order is
not applicable to the Company;

ey

To the best of our knowledge and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of Section 148 of the Act in
respect of the activities undertaken by the Company;

[n respect of Statutory dues :

a)  According to the records of the Company examined by us, undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and Service tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax,
duty of customs, cess and any other material statutory dues have been generally regularly
deposited with appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations
given to us, there were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid dues,
which were outstanding as on March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable;

by According to the information and c¢xplanalions given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authority
on account of any dispute;

According to the information and explanations given to us and representation given to us by
the management, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that
have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act. 1961 (43 of 1961);

a)  The Company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from any banks, financial
institutions and Government. The Company has taken short term loan from the holding
company where there is no default lender. Hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the
Order is not applicable;

b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
governmenl or any government authority or other lender;
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[n our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given and records
examined by us, the money raised by way of short term loans from holding company
have been applied, prima facie, for the purpose for which they were obtained;

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination ot the financial statements of the Company, we
report that, prima facie, no funds raised on short-term basis have been used during the
year for long-term purposes by the Company;

Since the company does not have any subsidiary, associates or joint ventures, this clause
is not applicable to the Company.

Since the company does not have any subsidiary, associates or joint ventures, this clause
is not applicable 1o the Company.

The Company has not raised moncy by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and hence clause (x)(a) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable to the Company;

[n our opinion and according (o the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our audit procedures, the Company has complied with requirements of section 42
of the Act with respect to issue of convertible debentures on private placement basis and
the funds raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.
Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares however has issued
compulsorily convertible debentures during the year for which the requirement

applicd (or the purpose for which it was raised;

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the linancial statements and as per information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year;

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section
12 of section 143 of the Act has becn filed by auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Govermment, during the vear and up to the date of this report;

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year;

12)  Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of
the Order are not applicable to the Company;

13)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
wilh related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act and their details

OFFICE ADDRESS - 178, 2° FLOOR, RAGHULEELA MALL, KANDIVALI WEST, MUMBAL- 67

‘J,/_



14)

15)

16)

17)

18)
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have been disclosed in the {inancial statements cte., as required by the applicable accounting
standards;

@) Inour opinion and based on our examination, the company does not have an internal audit
system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the
Companics Act 2013;

b) Since the Company does not require to have an internal audit system, the provisions of

clause (x1v) sub clause (b) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the
Company; '

According to the information and explanations provided by the management, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons connected with him as
relerred 1o in Scction 192 of the Act;

a) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not required to be
registered under scetion 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

b) [n our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to us and on
the basis of our audit procedurcs, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking
Financial or Housing Finance activities during the year as per the Reserve bank of India
Act 1934

¢) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to us, the
Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India;

d) [n our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to us, the
Group has no Core Investment Company (CIC);

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 60,564.75 thousands in the current financial
vear and also of Rs. 62.550.01 thousands in the immediately preceding financial year;

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Therefore, provisions
of clause (xviil) of Paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company;

According to the informaltion and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilitics, other information accompanying the financial statements, continuous financial
support from holding company, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come Lo our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, slate that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
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Company. We [urther state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due;

20) Since the Company has incurred losses, the Company is not required to contribute towards
CSR activities under section 135 of the Act and accordingly clause (xx) of Paragraph 3 of the
Order is not applicable to the Company;

21) According to information and explanations given to us, Company is not required to prepare
the consolidated financial statement under sub section 3 of section 129 of the Act. Therefore,
provisions of clause (xxi) of Paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

TFor JAIN NIKHIL N & CO.

Chartered Accountants

I} \:gislration no. 155926wW
\'\

e

Nikhil N Jain
Partner |
Membership No.: 116643 \%,

UDIN  : #2V66632 AW FQE%?O

Placc : Mumbai
Date : April 21, 2022
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF SILVAN INNOVATION LABS PRIVATE LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 2 () under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
seetion 3 of Scetion 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial over financial
reporting of SILVAN INNOVATION LABS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company™) as of
Mareh 31. 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit ol Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued
by the Institute ol Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the
design. implementalion and mainienance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating cllectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence 1o Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
(rauds and crrors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
{inancial reporting with reference to these [inancial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by ICAI and the Standards on Auditing
preseribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, 10 the extent applicable to an audit of internal
linancial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements was eslablished and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures Lo obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal {inancial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these financial
stalements and their operating cfleclivencss. Our audit of internal financial controls over
linancial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
linancial reporting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audil opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference To These
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements is a process designed to provide rcasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting with reference to these {inancial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and Lairlv reflect the transactions and dispositions of the asscts of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
(inancial statcments in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
ol management and directors of the company : and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or limely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
asscts that could have a material effect on the I'inancial statements.

Inhcerent Limitations of Internmal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With
Reference To These Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to crror or fraud may occur and
not be deteeted. Also, projections of any cvaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
stalements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at 31 March 2022, based on the criteria for inlernal financial control over financial reporting
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reportmg issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

::E .
it

For JAIN NIKITIL N & CO.

Chartered Accountants
Firm, lﬁgislmrion no. 133926W

'-\I. I_,
NikRiT N Jain

Partner
Membership No.: 116643
UDIN = 2204643 AWy L2870

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 21, 2022
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Silvan Innovation Labs Private Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

(Z in 000)
As at As at As at
e 31 Mar 21 1 Apr20
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 305.01 352.31 39947
Other intangible assets 4 91,885.61 1,08,395.86 =
Intangible assets under development 3 = 3,500.00 1,01,361.45
Financial assets
(a) Trade receivables G | 414.91 5,263.99
(b) Security Deposits - 222.72 4,635.66
Non-current tax assets (net) g - - -
Deferred tax assets (net) = = -
Other non-cumrent assets 10 - 18.80 18.80
92,605.53 1,12,489.69 1,11,679.37
Current assets
Inventories 11 5,253.89 6,371.14 22,695.22
Financial assets
(a) Trade receivables 6 7,178.77 2,169.69 22,733.84
(b) Cash and cash equivalents 8 250.52 263.72 37.51
(c) Loans 7 140.00 - E
(d) Other financial assets - 560.00 -
Other current assets 10 1,705.37 1,571.88 1,775.28
Current Tax Assets g 1,128.08 1,996.96 1,772.05
15,656.63 12,933.39 49,013.90
Total assets 1,08,262.16 1,25,423.08 1,60,693.27
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 12 10,195.60 10,195.60 10,195.60
(b) Other equity 13 28,289.85 33,324.04 96,006.78
38,485.45 43,519.64 1,06,202.38
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities:
Financial liabilities
(a) Borrowings - - -
(b) Provisions 18A 6,614.00 5,323.00 §,930.00
6,614.00 §,323.00 5,930.00
Current liabilities:
Financial liabilities
(a) Borrowings 14 45,500.00 25,498.79 20,254.95
(b) Trade payables 15
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises | = 1,316.22 501.91
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises | 2,390.39 10,532.88 18,683.57
(c) Other financial liabilities 16 | 719.89 - 64.30
Other current liabilities 17 13,426.43 37,086.55 8,260.16
Provisions 18B 1,126.00 2,146.00 796.00
63,162.71 76,580.44 48,560.89
Total equity and liabilities 1,08,262.16 1,25,423.08 1,60,693.27
Corporate information and summary of significant accounting policies 1&2
Other notes to accounts 1t0 35
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Jain Nikhil N & Co Silvan Innovation Labs Private Limited
Chartered Accouniants CIN:U72900KA2008PTC 046964 |
Firm Registration No.: 155926 W %T \ LL
- ‘# Ir ’ l\
Q - _.- Ajay Gupta B.‘S.Pr.'aveen
Nikhil N Jain 3
Partner Director Director
Membership No: 116643 DIN: 09447933 DIN: 03017823
Place: Mumbai Place:Mumbai Place: Vadodara
Date: 21.04.2022 Date: 21.04.2022 Date: 21.04.2022
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Silvan Innovation Labs Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes

INCOME
Revenue from operations 19
Otherincome 20
Total income

EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 21
Purchases of stock-in-trade
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 22
Employee benefits expense 23
Finance costs 24
Depreciation and amortisation expense 25
Other expenses 26
Total expenses
Profit before tax
Income tax expenses 9
Current tax
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods
Deferred tax (credit)/charge
Total tax expenses
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income .
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans
Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Designated cash flow hedges
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Earnings per share 27
Basic (3)
Diluted (%)
Weighted average equity shares used in computing earnings per equity share 27
Basic

Diluted

Corporate information and summary of significant accounting policies 1&2
Contingent liabilities and commitments 28
Other notes to accounts 1t0 35

Year ended

31 Mar 22

22,180.74
52.32
22,233.06

11,010.65

(855.66)|
44,229.11
3,834.38
22,539.44
22,282.33
1,03,040.25
{80,807.19)

(80,807.19)

(2,297.00)

(2,297.00)
(83,104.19)

(0.82)
(0.82)

1,01,956.00

(% in 000)
Year ended
31 Mar 21

14,841.59
15.16
14,856.75

6,929.37
4,631.51
11,769.29
25,806.14
3,457.03
132.09
25,198.08
77,923.51
(63,066.76)

(63,066.76)

384.00

384.00
(62,682.76)

(0.61)
(0.61)

1,01,956.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For Jain Nikhil N & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 155926 W

@ A =

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Silvan Innovation Labs Private Limited

CIN:U72900KA2008PTC046964

\

Nikhil N Jain
Partner

Membership No:116643

Place: Mumbai
Date: 21.04.2022

Ajay Gupta
Director
DIN: 09447933

Place:Mumbai
Date: 21.04.2022
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Silvan innovation Labs Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended ended 31 Mar 22

A) Share Capital (Refer note 12)

(¥in 000)
31 Mar 21 01 Apr 20
Balance at the beginning of the year 10,195.60 10,195.60 10,195.60
Balance at the end of the year/Period 10,196.60 10,196.60 10,196.60
B) Other Equity (Refer note 13)
(% In Dag)
Hems of Other
Reserves & Surplus comprehensive
income (OCI)
Total other squity
p ity s N y
Securities Premlum convertible convertible Retained Earnings
p es
As at 31 March 2020 2,65,964,34 8,892.57 - (1.78.850.13) - 96,006,78
Restated balance as at 1 April 2020 2,65,964.34 8,892.57 - (1,78,850.13) - 96,006.78
Profit/(loss) after tax for the year - - ] (63,066.74) x (63,066.74)
Items of OCI for the year, net of tax E = =
Re-measurement gains / {losses) on defined N _ _ _ 384.00
benefit plans i 384.00
As at 31 March 21 2,65,964.34 8,892.57 - (2,41,916.87) 384.00 33,324.04
Loss after tax far the period - - - (80,807.18) = (80,807.18)
Items of OCI for the quarter, net of tax = B
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined
benefit plans -l ) . - . (2:297.00) (2,297.00)
Compulsorily convertible debentures issued during
the period 9 78,070.00 78,070.00
As at 31 March 22 2,665,964,34 8,892.67 78,070.00 (3,22,724.08) {1,913.00) 28,289.85

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial staternents.

As per our report of even date
For Jain Nikhil N & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.:155926W

D

Nikhil N Jain
Partner
Membership No: 116643

Place: Mumbai
Date: 21.04.2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Silvan Innovation Labs Private Limited
CINUT 220 KAZO0BPT CO46964

T

AT —

Ajay Gupta
Directar
DIN: 09447933

Place:Mumbai
Daie: 21.04,2022
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Director
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Silvan Innovation Labs Private Limited

Statement of Cash flows for the Year ended 31 Mar 22 (¥ in 000)
Year ended Year ended
31 Mar 22 31 Mar 21
A. CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax (80,807.19) (63,066.74)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 22,539.44 132.09
Provision for Bad and Doubtful debts - 15,783.52
Bad Debts 434.52 | 462,27
Finance cost 3,834.38 3,457.03
Operating loss before working capital changes (53,998.85) (43,231.84)
Movements in working capital:
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables and Other Financial Assets (5,330.48) 13,638.70
(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories (net) 1,117.25 16,324.18
Increase/ (Decrease} in trade payable,financial liabilities and provisions (35,135.82) 22,616.91
Cash (used in)/generated from operations (93,347.90) 9,347.94
Income tax paid (net of refunds) 868.88 (224.91)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (A) (92,479.02) 9,123.03
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets including under development (2,490.88) (10,619.34)
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (2,490.88) (10,619.34)
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issue of Compulsorily convertible debentures 78,070.00 -
(Repayment) / Proceeds of short term borrowings 20,001.19 5,175.14
Interest and other finance cost paid (3,114.49) (3,452.62)
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 94,956.70 1,722.52
Netincrease / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (13.20) 226.21
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 263.72 37.51
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (Refer note 8) 250.52 263.72
Net debt reconciliation Refer Note 14
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements. 1t035
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Jain NikhilN & Co Silvan Innovation Labs Private Limited
Chartered Accountants CIN:U72900KA2008PTC046964
Firm Registration No.:155926W 4 f’\‘ir/
@ A
Nikhil N Jain Ajay Gupta B.S.Praveen
Partner Director Director
Membership No: 116643 DIN: 09447933 DIN: 03017823

Place: Mumbai
Date: 21.04.2022

Place:Mumbai
Date: 21.04.2022
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Silvan Innovation Labs Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

1. Corporate information

The Company (CIN: U72900KA2008PTC046964) was incorporated on June 30, 2008 to facilitate development and maintenance of business and
software applications on all popular and mainframe and minicomputer platforms and to carry on the work of development of software and related
services in all kinds.The registered office of the Company is situated at Bengaluru, Kamataka. Polycab India Limited has acquired 100%
shareholding of the Company from existing shareholders persuant to share purchase agreement dated 18 June 2021

The Board of Directors approved the audited financial statements for the Year ended 31 March 2022 and authorised for issue on 21 April 2022,

2, summary of significant accounting policies
A) Basis of preparation

i Statement of Compliance:
The audited financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) nolified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] on accrual basis and other relevant provisions of the Act.
Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the information and disclosures mandated by Schedule Ill,
applicable Ind AS, other applicable pranouncements and regulations.

Basis of Measurement:
The financial statements for the year ended 31 Mar 2022 have been prepared on an accrual basis and a historical cost convention, except for some
of the financial assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value or amortised cost at the end of each reporting period:

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be
received from sell of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Classification of Current / Non-Current Assets and Liabilities:
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance sheet based on current / non-current classification. It has been classified as current or
non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division Il of Schedule I1i to the Companies Act, 2013.

Operating Cycle:

An asset is treated as current when it is:

(8) Expected to be realised orintended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

(b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

(c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is treated as current when:
(a) Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
{b) Itis held primarily for the purpose of irading;
(c) ltis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
(d) Thereis no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabililies.
i 7 Functional and Presentation Currency:
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%) which is the functional currency of the Company. All amounts disclosed in the
financial statements which also include the accompanying notes have been rounded off to the nearest thousand up to two decimal places, as per the
requirement of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act 2013, unless otherwise stated.

B) Use of estimates and judgements
The preparalion of financial statements require o make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in ihe period in which the eslimates are revised and future periods are affected.

The key assumplions conceming the future and other key sources of estimalion uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the camying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumplions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur. The Company uses the following critical accounting estimates in preparation of its financial statements:

i Revenue Recognition:
The Company applied judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts at a point in time
with customers, such as identifying performance obligations in a sales transactions. The Company allocated the portion of the transaction price to
goods based on its relative standalone prices. Also, certain contracts of sale includes volume rebates that give rise to variable consideralion. In
respect of long term contracts significant judgments are used in:

(a) Determining the revenue to be recognised in case of performance obligation salisfied over a period of time; revenue recognition is done by
measuring the progress towards complete satisfaclion of performance obligation. The progress is measured in terms of a proportion of actual
cost incurred to-date, to the total estimated cost attributable to the performance obligation.

(b) Determining the expected losses, which are recognised in the period in which such losses become probable based on the expected total
contract cost as at the reporting date.
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Silvan Innovation Labs Private Limited
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Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in
depreciation expense in current and future periods.

Provisions

The Company estimates the provisions that have present abligations as a result of past events and it is probable that outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligations. These provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting peried and are adjusted to reflect the current best
eslimates. The timing of recognition requires application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances which may be subject to change.

Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent fiabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Company. Potential liabilities that are
possible but not probable of crystallizing or are very difficult to quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the
notes but are not recognized. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active
markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported
fair value of financial instruments.

Foreign Currency Transactions / Translations

Transactions in currencies other than Company’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
date of transaction. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are reported using the exchange rate
prevailing as at reporting date. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies which are camried in terms of historical cost are reported using
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items
at the exchange rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are
recognised as income or expenses in the year in which they arise.

Provision for income tax and deferred tax assets

The Company uses estimates and judgements based on the relevant rulings in the areas of allocation of revenue, costs, allowances and
disallowances which is exercised while determining the provision for income tax. A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing
and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Accordingly, the Company exercises its judgement to reassess the
carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If an indication exists, or when the
annual impairment testing of the asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's or Cash-generating-unit's (CGU's) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from the other assets or group of assets. When the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds it recoverable amount, the asset is considered as impaired and it’s written down to its recoverable amount.

The Company estimates the value-in-use of the Cash generating unit (CGU) based on the future cash flows after considering current economic
conditions and trends, estimated future operating results and growth rate and anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions. The estimated
cash flows are developed using internal forecasts. The estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks spexcific to the asset/ CGU.

Employee benefits

The accounting of employee benefit plans in the nature of defined benefit requires the Company to use assumptions. These assumptions have been
explained under employee benefits note.

Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. identification of a lease requires significant
judgment, The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.
The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend the
lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is
reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not
to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to
exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change
in the non-cancellable period of a lease,

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar
characteristics.

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19

The Company has taken into account the possible impacts of COVID-18 in preparation of the financial statements, including but not limited to its
assessment of liquidity and going concem assumption, recoverable values of its financial and non-financial assets, impact on revenues and on cost
budgets in respect of EPC contracts, impact on leases and impact on effectiveness of its hedging relationships. The Company has considered
internal and certain external sources of information up to the date of approval of the financial statements and expects to recover the carrying amount
of its assets. The impact of COVID-19 on the financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial
statements.
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C) significant Accounting Policies

Revenue recognition
The Company applies IND AS 115 which establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers.

Measurement of Revenue

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts, incentive schemes, if any, as per contracts
with customers. Transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring good or
service to a customer. Taxes collected from customers on behalf of Government are not treated as Revenue.

Sale of goods

Revenue from contracts with customers involving sale of products is recognized at a point in time when control of the product has been transferred
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be enlitled in exchange for those goods or services, and there are no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products and the Company retains neither continuing managerial involverment
1o the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold. At contract inception, the Company assess the goods or
services promised in a contract with a customer and identify as a performance obligation each promise to transfer to the customer. Revenue from
contracts with customers is recognized when control of goods or services are transferred to customers and the Company retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold.

Otherincome
Other income is comprised primarily of interest incomne, dividend income, gain on investments and exchange gain on forward contracts and on
translation of other assets and liabilities.

Interest income on financial asset measured either at amortised cost or FVTPL is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset's net camying amount on initial recognition,

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been established.

Foreign Currency
‘The Company's Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupee (Z) which is also the Company’s functional currency. Foreign currency
transaction are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency, using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of transaction.

Measurement of foreign currency itemn at the Balance sheet date:
(i) Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at the exchange rates prevailing an the reporting
date.

(i) Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions.

(i) Exchange differences:
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit &
Loss.

Warranty

The Company typically provides warranties for general repairs of defects that existed at the time of sale. These assurance-type warranties are
accounted for under Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. In certain contracts, the Company provides warranty for an
extended period of time and includes rectificalion of defects that existed at the time of sale and are normally bundled together with the main contract.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price,
borrowing costs if capitalisation criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.
Capitalisation of costs in the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment ceases when {he item is in the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Company. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the
existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. Incomes and expenses related to the incidental operations not necessary to
bring the item to the location and the condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Company are recognized in
the Statement of profit and loss. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance
expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year in which such expenses are incurred.

Gains orlosses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipments are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss when ihe asset is derecognized.

'Capital work-in-progress comprises of property, plant and equipment that are not ready for their intended use at the end of reporting period and are
carried at cost comprising direct costs, related incidental expenses, other directly attributable costs and borrowing costs.

‘The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no further benefit is expected from its use and
disposal. Assets retired from active use and held for disposal are generally stated at the lower of their net book value and net realizable value. Any
gain or losses arising on disposal of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Once the assets classified as
held-for-sale, property, plant and equipment are no longer depreciated.

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment's is calculated on pro rata basis on straight-line method using the management assessed useful lives
of the assets which is in line with the manner prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

"The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively. Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and installation is complete and the asset is ready for its
intended use

'Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset. Borrowing cost incurred for constructed assets is
capitalised up to the date by which asset is ready for its intended use, based on borrowings incurred specifically for financing the asset or the
weighted average rate of all other borrowings, if no specific borrowings have been incurred for the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period they occur.

Property, plant and equipment with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on
an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the
recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Transition to Ind AS: On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of ils property, plant and equipment
recognised as at 1 April 2020 measured as per the previous GAAP and used that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and
equipment.
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Lease

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease,
atinception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to controf the use of an idenlified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the econoemic benefits from use of the asset
through the period of the lease and (jii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset,

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired are reported at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises
purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalisation criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the
intended use.

Amortisalion on intangible assets is calculated on pro rata basis on straight-line method using the useful lives of the assets and in the manner
prescribed in Schedule [l of the Companies Act, 2013.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of amortisation of Intangible assets are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively.

Expenditure on research and development activities is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. Development expenditure is
capitalized as part of cost of the resulting intangible asset only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the Company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development
and to use or sell the asset. Otherwise, it is recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is measured at cost
less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses, if any. The research and development cost has been amortized on pro rata
basis on straight-line method using the useful lives of the assets i.e 5 years.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising
from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the camrying amount of the asset are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. if
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual
asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows thal are largely independent of those from other assets.

Transition to Ind AS: On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its Intangible Assets recognised as
at 1 April 2020 measured as per the previous GAAP and used that carrying value as the deemed cost of the Intangible Assets.

Income taxes

Income tax expenses comprise current tax and deferred income tax and includes any adjustments related to past periods in current and / or deferred
tax adjustments that may become necessary due to certain developments or reviews during the relevant period. Current tax is measured at the
amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current and deferred taxes are recognised in statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively. Income tax received / receivable pertains to prior period recognised when reasonable certainty arise for refund
acknowledged by the Income-tax department. Company periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible and
taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date. The effect of
charges in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or
the substantive enactment date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences
only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can
be realised.

At each reporting date, the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recognises unrecognized deferred tax asset to the extent that
it has become reasonably certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets
can be realized.

I he carrying amount ot deterred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. Ihe Company writes-down the carrying amount of deferred tax asset
to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred
tax asset can be realized. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be,
that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceabile right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to setile the asset and the liability on a net basis. Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet
after off-setting advance tax paid and income tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction and where the relevant tax paying unit intends to settle
the asset and liability on a net basis.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off assets against liabilities representing
current tax and where the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.

Inventories

Raw materials, traded goods, work in progress, finished goods and stores and spares are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. However,
materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be
incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost of raw materials, packing materials, and stores and spares is determined on a First In-
First Out (FIFO) basis and includes all applicable costs, including inward freight, incurred in bringing goods to their present location and condition.

Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost includes direct materials as aforesaid, direct labour
cost and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on total manufacturing overheads to raw materials consumed.

Stock -in-trade are valued at lower of cost and or realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and includes all applicable costs, including inward
freight, incurred in bringing the inventories at their location and condition. Cost is deterrnined on a weighted average basis.

The stocks of scrap materials have been taken at net realisable value.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs
necessary to make the sale,
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vil

Xi

xii

xiii

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating
to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit & Lass. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
cument pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to lhe liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provision is recognised for expected warranty claims and after sales services when the product is sold or service provided to the customer, based on
past experience of the level of repairs and returns. Initial recognition is based on historical experience. The initial estimate of warranty-related costs is
revised annually. It is expected that significant portion of these costs will be incurred in the next financial year and all will have been incurred within
warranty period after the reporting date. Assumptions used to calculate lhe provisions for warranties were based on current sales levels and current
information available about returns during the warranty period for all products sold.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If itis no longer probable that the outflow of
resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs that are direclly attributable to the acquisition, construction or erection of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of cost of such
asset until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. Qualifying assets are assets which take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for their intended uses are
complete. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs include
exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per equily share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for
events such as fresh issue, bonus issue that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

Diluted eamings per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or
converted during the year. Diluted eamnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic eamings per equity share and also the weighted average number of
equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive
only if their conversion to equily shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilulive equity shares
are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are
determined independently for each period presented.

Contingent Liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflaw of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare
cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent
liability but discloses it's existence in the Financial Statements.

Segment

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business aclivities from which it may eam revenues and incur expenses,
whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company's Chief Operating Decision Maker (‘CODM") to make decisions for which discrete
financial information is available. The Company's chief operating decision maker is the Executive Director.

The Board of directors monitors the operating results of all product segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments.

Employee benefits

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the yearin
which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the year and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance
sheet.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

Defined contribution plan

Provident Fund: Contribution towards provident fund is made to Lhe regulatory authorities, where the Company has no further obligations. Such
benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made
on a monthly basis which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee's State Insurance Scheme: Contribution towards employees' state insurance schemne is made to the regulatory authorities, where the
Company has no further abligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further
obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Defined benefit plans

The Company provides for retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity. Benefits payable to eligible employees of the Company with respect to graluity,
a defined benefit plan is accounted for on the basis of an actuarial valuation as at the Balance Sheet date. In accordance with the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1872, the plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employees on retirement, death while in service or on termination of
employment an amount equivalent to 15 days basic salary for each completed year of service. The present value of such obligation is determined by
the projected unit credit method and adjusted for past service cost and fair value of plan assels as at the Balance Sheet date ihrough which the
obligations are to be settled. The resultant actuarial gain or loss on change in present value of the defined benefit obligation or change in return of
the plan assets is recognized as an income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The expected retum on plan assets is based on the
assumed rate of return of such assets. The Company contributes to a fund set up by Life Insurance Company of India.

Financial Instruments
Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets
(i} Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through Statement of Profit

& Loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Financial assets are classified at the initial recognition as
financial assets measured at fair value or as financial assets measured at amortised cost.
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(ii) Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:
(a) Financial assets at amortised cost
(b) Financial assets at fair value
Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely in the Statement of Profit & Loss (i.e, fair value through
Statement of Profit & Loss), or recognised in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income)

(a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Afinancial assets that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortised cost (net of Impairment) unless the asset is designated at
fair value through Statement of Profit & Loss under the fair value option.

(i) Business Model test: The objective of ihe Company's business model is to hold the financial assets to collect the contractual cash flow

(rather than to sell the instrument prior to its contractual maturity to realise its fair value changes).

(i) Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flow that are solely

(b) (i)

(i)

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assels is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held with in a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collections contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial assets
give rise on specified dated to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable eleclion to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in
the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and
is irmevocable.

if the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends,
are recognized in the OCI. Thereis no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit &
Loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories is subsequently fair valued through Statement of Profit & Loss.

(iii) Derecognition
Afinancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
(b) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in

When the Company has transferred its rights 1o receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
The Company discloses analysis of the gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit and loss arising from the derecognition of financial

(iv) Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model for the following:
(a) Trade receivables or any contraciual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of

(b

)

Ind AS 115

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables and contract assets,

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The Company has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

The Company recognises an allowance for ECL for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECL are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECL are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECL are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required
for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognises lifetime expected losses for
all contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. In determining the allowances for doubtful
trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based
on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking
information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and allowance rates used in the
provision matrix. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-months expected credit
losses or at an amount equal to the 12 months expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the
credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Company may also consider a financial asset to be in defauit when intemal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to
receive the outstanding confractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a

significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide
for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used.

If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses the provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade
receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historical observed default rates over the expected life of the frade receivables and its
adjusled forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) during the period is recognized as other expense in the Statement of Profit & Loss.
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D) Financial liabilities

(i

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs. The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, lease
liabilities and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification. as described below:

(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered inlo by the Company that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109,

(b) Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition,
and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabiliies designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own
credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

(c) Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate
method.

Embedded Derivatives

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as a separate
derivative if: the economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivalive would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition

(a) Afinancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability
is replaced by anather from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the stalement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are direclly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of
Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

(b

Cash Flow Statement

Cashflows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the year is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing
cashflows. The cash flows from operalting, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand, cheques in hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and having original maturities of three
months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted
for withdrawal and usage.
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
3. Property, plant and equipment

The changes in the carrying value of Property, plant and equipment for the year ended 31 March 2022 are as follows:

(€ in 000)
Fumiture and Office
Computars fixtures equipments lotel
Gross carrying value {at cost)
As at 01 April 2021 2,270.13 730.08 975.05 3,975.24
Additions 28.00 28.00
Disposals/Adjustments (42.75) (338.71) (381,46)
As at 31 March 22 2,298.13 687.31 636.34 3,621.78
Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 April 2021 2,155.62 542.59 924.72 3,622.93
Depreciation charge for the year 435 49,36 12.61 66,32
Disposals/Adjustment (42.43) (330.05) (372.48)
As at 31 March 22 2,159.97 549.52 607.28 3,316.77
Net carrying value
As at 31 March 22 138.16 137.79 29.06 305.01
The changes in the carying value of Property, plant and equipment for the period ended 31 March 2021 are as follows:
Aarmmidare  FUMtLre and Office
. Total
fisdures equipments
Gross carrying value (at cost)
As at 01 April 2020 2,270.13 704.56 975.05 3,849.74
Additions 2550 25.50
Disposals/Adjustments -
As at 31 March 2021 2,270.13 730.06 975.05 3,975.24
Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 April 2020 2,155.62 485.04 909.60 3,650.26
Depreciation charge for the year - 57.55 15.12 72.66
Disposals/Adjusiment .
As at 31 March 2021 2,155.82 542.59 924.72 3,622.93
Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2021 114.51 187.47 50.33 352.31
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Notes to Stand. Fil ial S for the year ended 31 March 2022

4. Other intangible assets
The changes in the carrying value of Intangible assels for lhe year ended 31 March 2022 are as follows:

Technalogy Soltwars

Gross carrying value (at cost)
As al 01 April 2021 1,63,782.02
Additions 5,862.88
Disposals/Adjustmenis
As at 31 March 22 1,69,744.90
Accumulated amartization
As at 01 April 2021 55,386.16
Amorlisalion charge for the year 22473.13
Disposals/ Adjusiments =
As at 31 March 22 77,859.29
Net carrying value
As at 31 March 22 91,885.61
The changes in the camying value of Intangible assets for the period ended 31 March 2021 are as follows:
(2in 000)
Technology Software
Gross carrying value (at cost)
As at 01 April 2020 55,326.73
Additions 1,08,455.28
Disposals
As at 31 March 2021 1,63,762.02
Accumulated smortization
As a1 01 April 2020 55326.73
Amortisalion charge for the year 50.43
Disposals/ Adjustments
As at 31 March 2021 55,386.16
Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2021 1,08,395.86
5. Intangible Assets under development
As al 01 April 2020 1,01,361.45
Additions during the year 10,583.84
Capitabised during Lhe year (1,08,455.28)
As at 31 March 2021 3,500.00
Additions during the year - 2,462.88
Capitakised during Lthe year (5,962.88)
As at )1 March 2022 -
6. Trade receivables
(in 000)
[ 31 Maraa] 31 Mar 21 01 Apr 20
Unsecured (atamortised cost)
Non Current
Trade receivables- Considered Good 414.91 5,263.99
Trade receivables - Credit Impaired = 6,285.68 -
Less: i iH for trade i Credil Imp. = | (6,205.88) =
Non-current Trade receivables | 414.91 | - 5,263.99
Current |
Trade receivables- Considered Good | 7178.77 | 2,169.68 22,733.84
Trade receivables - Credit Impaired | 2,388.85 | 9,487.84 -
Trade receivables (Gross) | 9,568.62 11,657.53 22,733.34
Less: Impai Ik for trade 7 Credit Imp (2,389.85) (8.487.84) ~
Current Trade receivables (Net) | TATETT 2,169.69 22,733.84
The following iable summarizes the change in impairment allowance measured using the life lime expecied credit loss model:
¥ in 000)
_:ﬂuzﬂ 31 Mar 21 (01 Apr)lll
At the beginning of year (15.783.52)
Provision during the year - (9,487.84) -
Retention Provision during the year - | (6,295.68) =
Bad debis written ofl {ne1) 13,383.67 | - -
Atthe end of the year | (2,388.85)| {15,783.52) -
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Notes to Standal Fil ial St for the year ended 31 March 2022
Notes:-
{a) Trade i are usually interest bearing and are generally on credil lerms up Lo 80 days. The Company's lerm includes charging of inlerest for delayed payment beyond

7.

agreed credit days. Company entities charge inlerest for delayed payments in ceriain cases depending on faclars, such as, market conditions and past realisalion trend.

{b) The Company follovss life time expecied credit loss model. Accordingly, deterioration in credit risk is nol required to be evaluated annually.
{€) No trade or other i are due from directors or other officers of Ihe Company either severally or jointly with any olher person. Furiher, no trade or other receivables are due
from firms or private companies respeciively in which any director is a partner, a direclor or a member.

(d) Trade receivabies ageing schedulks

As at 31 March 22 (2in 000)
Estanding for follgwing pefinds frsn dus gafe of paymen!
Mol due
than 3 months 1-2 years More thar

Undisputed Trade
) Receivables - conskdered

good = 5,085 46 2,508.21 - - - 7,583.68

Undisputed Trade

@ Receivaties - which have
significant increase in credil

risk - = =5 - =
@) Undisputed Trade
Receivables - Credit Impaired - = 2373.23 16.63 - - 2,388.85
(V) Dispuled Trade Receivables -
considered good - - - - - - -
() Which have significant
increase in credi risk - - = - - . -
W) Disputed Trade Receivables -
Credit Impaired - - - - - =
- 5,085.46 4,801.44 16.63 - - 9,883.53
As at 31 March 21 (¥in 000}
COutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
More than 6
Rl Lessthen 6 months  months to 12 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years LS
months
Undisputed Trade .
() Reczivabies- cansidered
good - 2,168.60 - - - - 2,160.69
. Undisputed Trade
il Recenvables - which have
snificant mcrease in credit
risk - P - = =
(ili) Undisputed Trade
Recelvables - Credit Impaired - 67.21 5,281.98 1,628.23 4,011.20 4,764.89 15,783.52
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -
considered good - - - - - -
(v) which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - - -
(vi) Disputed Trade Recelvables -
Creait impatred - - - - -
- 2,236.90 5,201.99 1,628.23 4,011,20 4,794.88 17,963.21
Loans
Loans - Current {®in 000)
—ITE SMarzt of Aprao
Atamortised cost
Loans to employees
Unsecured, considered good 140,00 - =
140.00 - -
. Cash and cash equivalents (¥ in 000)
—TTE HMarzt o1 Aprao
Cash and cash equivalents (at amortised cost)
Balances with banks
In current accounis 25052 63.72 37.34
Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months - 200.00 -
Cash in hand 0.17
250.62 263.72 37.51

There is no repatriation resiriction with regard to cash and cash equivalenls at the end of reporting period and priar periods.
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Notes to St: Fi ial S for the year ended 31 March 2022

9. Income taxes

A Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss: NIL for the current year and year ended 31 March 2021
B R iliation of tax exp and the ing profit multiplied by Company's ic lax rate: Since ihe Company has incurred losses in the current year and
previ ial year, ilialion of Tax is nol required
C The details of Non-curent/ (Current) 1ax assets / (liabilities) as at 31 March 2022
(2in 000)
31 Mar 21 01 Apr2o
Non-cument tax assels (net of provision for taxalion) | -
Current tax asset (net of advance 1ax) 1,128.08 1,886.86 1,772.05
Net current income tax asset/ (lability) at the end 1,128.08 1,996.96 1,772.05

D The movement in gross deferred 1ax assets and liabiliies
Forthe year ended 31 March 2022
|# in D00}
Carrying walue
as at

Changes through  Changes through  Carrying value as at

profitand loss ocl 31 Mar 22

Deferred tax assets / {liabilities) in relation to

Property, plant and equipment and inlangible assels 3,162.84 (2,364.60) - 798.15
Provision for employee benefils 1,841.84 70.46 - 2,012.40
Unabsorbed Depreciation 5,738.13 24,752.34 - 30,491.47
Total tax assets / (liabilities) 10,843,91 22,458,11 - 3330202
Forithe year anded 31 March 2021
(€in 000)
Ganw.:gnnluo Changes through  Changes through Camying value as at
proft and loss ocl 31 Mar 29
01 April 20
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) in relation to
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assels 3,162,84 - 3,162.84
Provision for employee benefils - 1,841.84 - 1,841.84
Unabsorbed Depredation - 5738.13 - 5,739.13
Total deferred tax assets / (liabilities) - 10,843.81 . 10,843.91
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9,
E

il

10.

-
pry

Income taxes

Reconciliation of deferred 1ax assets/ liabilities (net):
{¥in 000)

31 Mar 21 01 Apr 20
Net defemred tax assel / (liabifity) al the Beginning 10.843.91 - -

Tax (income)/expense due 1o iax rate change (reinsiatement of Opening Balance) = | = =
Tax (income)/expense on adjusiment of ax relating o earlier year - = =
Tax (income)/expense recognised in profil or loss 2245611 | 10,843.91 6,846.90
Tax (income)/expense recognised in OC|

33,302.02 l 10,843.91 6,846.99

Het deferred tax asset/ (liability) at the end |
Notes:-
As of 31 March, 2022, Ihe Company has net deferred 1ax asseis of Rs 33,302.02 lhousands (Previous year 1,08,43.91 thousand). In the absence of il that ient future

1axable income will be available against which defered tax assets can be reafised, the same has not been recognised in the boaks of account in fine with Ind AS 12 on Income Taxes.

Tax losses and Tax credits
The Company has brought forward businass losses of Rs 1,70,363.38 lhousands on which neither deferred tax credit has been i nor is i for di under note 9 D, above

Other assets

Other assets - Non Curmrent {¥in 000)
31 Mar 21 01 Apr 20
Unsecured, considered good
Capial Advances - 18.80 18.80
| - 18.80 18.80
Other assets - Current (¥in 000)
ETED MMarzt 01 Apr2o
Advances other than capital advances, Unsecured, considered good
Advances for materials and serices 131.08 650.06 1.136.04
Others
Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid expenses 100.71 400.56 632.08
with yig it 1,235.21 422,26 -
Others 238.38 = 7.18
1,705.37 1,571.88 1,775.28
. Inventories
i (%in 000)
31 Mar 21 01 Apr2o
Raw materials 2012 1,883.03 6,547.82
Finished goods 4 26332 3,085.35 12,812.01
Stock-in-irade 65045 362.76 3,334 .40
5,253.59 $,371.14 22,695.22
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12. Equity Share capital
(%in 0o
[ har TS o1 Apr 20
Authorised share capitai |
1,80,392 (previous year 1,80,392) equity shares of Rs.100 each 18039.20 18039.20 18039,20
3,00,000 (previous year 3,00,000) 0.1% Ci Isonil ible prefe shares of Rs 10 each 3000.00 3000.00 3000.00
1,451 {previous year 1,451) 0,1% C i ible p shares of Rs 200 each( Class A1) 290,20 280.20 280.20
4,353 (previous year 4,353) 0.1% C i ible p shares of Rs 200 each (Class A2) B70.60 870.60 870.60
14,000 (previous year 14,000} 0.1% C i ible p shares of Rs 200 each (Class A3) 280000/ 2800.00 2800.00
25,000 (previous year 25,000} 0.1% C Isoril ible p shares of Rs 200 each {Class B) 6000.00 5000.00 5000.00
30000,00 30000.00 30,000.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
1,01,956 (previous year 1,01,956) equity shares of Rs,100 each 10185.60 10195.60 10,185.60
| 10195.60 10196.60 10,195.60
Note:
(a) The reconciliation of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 are as follow:
(¥in 0OD)
31 Mar 21 01 Apr20
Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount
At the beginning of the year 1.01,856.00 10,185.80 1,01,956.00 10,185.60 1,01,856.00 10,195.60
Add: Shares issued during the year — = - = = =
At the end of ithe year 1,01,956.00 10,195.60 1.01,856.00 10,196.60 1,01,966.00 10,195.60

{b) Terms/ rights attached to squity shares
The Company has only one class of equily shares having par value of 2 10 per share, Each holder of equily shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and
pays dividends in Indian rupees. The final dividend proposed by the Board of Direclors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeling.

In the event of liquidatior of the Company, the holders of equily shares will be entilled to receive ining assets of the Ci y, after distribution of all p
The disiribution will be in proporiion to the number of equily shares held by ihe shareholders.

(¢) The details of ing of F and haolding more than 5% shares are as under as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 are as follows:
31 Mar 22 I Mar 2 01 Apr20

N g Number of

”‘é’,‘,’;’;}'\"' Tolal share e Total share Number of Shares Total share
Polycab India Limited 0.00% 100.00% 0.00%
Giridhar Krishna Mamudipudi - 0,00% 19.86 0.02% 100.00% 18.86 0.02%
Avinash Kumar Gautam - 0.00% 19.70 0.02% 100.00% 18.70 0.02%
Mohan G - 0.00% 10.76 0.02% 100.00% 198.76 0.02%
Ajay Gupta : 0,00% 19.86 0.02% 100.00% 10.86 0.02%
V Srinvasan - 0.00% 6.28 0.01% 100.00% 6.28 0.01%
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12. Equity Share capital
{d) Aggregate number of bonus share issued and share issued for consideration other than cash during the period of 5 years i iately pi ding the reporting date :
There were no buy back of shares or issue of shares pursuant 1o contract withoul payment being received in cash during the previous 5 years.
{e) Dividend
The Company has nat declared any dividend during the year ended 31 March 22 and during the previous year.
13. Other equity (in 000)
31 Mar 21 01 Apr 20
Securities premium | 2,565,064 34 | 2,65,964,34 2,65,964.34
2,891,177 (previous year 2,91,177) 0.1% C Isoril ible p shares of Rs 10 each (Class A) | 2,911.77 291177 2,911.77
1,451 (previous year 1,451) 0.1% Ci l ible p shares of Rs 200 each( Class A1} 280.20 | 280.20 290.20
4,353 (previous year 4,353) 0.1% C convertible p shares of Rs 200 each (Class A2) | 870.60 | 870.60 870,60
13,236 (previous year 14.000) 0,1% C ily ible p shares of Rs 200 each (Class A3) | 2,647.20 | 2,647.20 2,647.20
10,864 (previous year 25 000) 0.1% C. il ible p shares of Rs 200 each (Class B) | 2,172.80 | 2,172.80 2,172.80
0.01% C i i 78,070.00 | - -
Retained eamnings (3,22,240,07) (241,532.88) (1,78,850.13)
30,586.84 33,324.03 96,006.78
Notes:
a c i { shares {CCPS)
Serias A shares (CCPS)
The series A compulsorily convertible preference shares shall be convertible into fully paid equity shares at the option of the holder at any ime or automatically after the expiry of 19 years from the
dale of allotment in the conversion ratio of 10:1
Serios A1 [ i shares (CCPS)
The series A1 compulsorily convertble preference shares shall be convertible into fully paid equity shares at the oplion of the holder at any time or autornatically afler the expiry of 19 years from the
date of allotment in the conversion ratio of 1:1
Saries A2 il shares (CCPS)
The series A2 computsorily convertible preference shares shall be convertible into tully paid equily shares at the option of the hoider at any time or automatically afler the expiry of 19 years from the
date of allotment in the conversion ratio of 1:1
Series A3 Isaril; shases (CCPS)
The series A3 compulsorily convertible preference shares shall be convertible into fully paid equity shares at the option of the holder at any time or automatically afler the expiry of 19 years from the
date of issuance in lhe convarsion ratio of 1:1
The halders of sefies A3 preference shares shall be enlified (o attend the meelings of all sharehelders of the company and will be entitied to such voling rights on an as if converled basis, as may be
permissible under applicable law.
Series B shares {CCPS)
The series B compusonly convertible preference shares shall be convertible into fully paid equily shares at the option of the halder at any time or automatically after the expiry of 19 years from the
dale of issuance in the conversion ratio of 1:1
The holders of series B preference shares shall be entiled to attend the meetings of all shareholders of the company end will be entitled to such voting rights on an as if converted basts, as may be
permissible under applicable law.
Rights, and attached to shares
The company has one dass of compulsority convertible preference shares having nominal value of Rs 10 each and four dasses of compulsorily convertible prefesence shares having nominal value
of Rs 200 each
b ili of shares atth and at the end of the yaar (€in 000)
As at 31 Mar 21 As at 01 Apr 20
0.1% shares of Rs 10 each Number of shares Amount |Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
(Class A)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 291,177 291177 29,177 291177 291,177 2,911,77
Add: Issued during the year - - - -
Quistanding at the end of the year 291177 291177 281177 291177 2,91,177 2,911.77
0.1% C: shares of Re 200 each Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
{Class A1)
Ouistanding atthe beginning of the year 1,451 290,20 1,451 290 20 1,451 29020
Add: Issued duiing lhe year - - - - -
Outstanding athe end of the year 1,451 280.20 1.451 280 20 1451 29020
0.1% shares of Rs 200 each Number of shares Amaunt Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
{Class A2)
QOutstanding at the beginning of the year 4,353 87060 4,353 870 60 4,353 870.60
Add: Issued during Ihe year - - - - . -
Outstanding at the end of the year 4,353 870 60 4,353 87060 4353 870.60
0.1% C; shares of Rs 200 each Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
(Class A3)
Qutstanding at the beginning cf the year 13,236 2.647.20 13,236 2,647.20 13236 2,647.20
Add: Issued during the year - - - 2 - B
Outslanding al ihe end of the year 13236 2,647.20 13,236 2,647.20 13236 2647.20
0.1% shares of Rs 200 each Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
(Class B)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 10,864 217280 10,864 217280 10,864 2,172.80
Add: Issued during lhe year - - - - -
C fing #t the and of 1he year 10,554 2.172.80 10,558 2,172.80 10, E54 217280
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€ Detalls of sharss held by sharsholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate Freference shates in the Company
As at 31 Mar 21 As at 01 Apr20
% of holding in ths % of holding in the % of holding in
Number of shares elisy| Number of shares class Number of shares the class
Class A |
Polycab India Limited 291177 100 - - - -
IDBI Trusleeship services limited{on behalf of Infuse capital. A scheme under .
13E Trust) - - 1,74,010 60 1,74.010 60
Ramaraj R . - 38,488 13 38,488 13
Class A1
Palycab India Limited 1,451 100 - - - -
IDEI Trusteeship services limited{on behalf of [nfuse caprial, A scheme under - - 1,451 100 1,451 100
I3E Trust)
Class A2
Polycab India Limited 4353 100 - - - -
DB Trusteeship services kmited(on behalf of Infuse capital, A scheme under - - 4,353 100 4,353 100
I3E Trust)
Class A3
Polycab India Limited 13,236 100 - = - -
Gir. Ramakania Panda - - 726 5 726 §
HighPoints Tachnologies India Pvt Lid - - 726 5 726 5
IDBI Trusteeship services limited{on behslf of Infuse capital, A scheme under
13E Trust) = > 2,802 22 2,902 22
M Amanda Consultancy Services P Lid . - 726 5 726 5
Salil Gupta - = 725 5 725 5
Class B
Polycab India Limited 10,864 100
SVIC NO 32 Mew Technologes Business P 10.8584 100 10,854 100
d y D cco)
The CCDs shaf] carmy a cumulative coupon rate of 0,01% per annum on the taca value of the CCDs (*Coupon®) which shal be payable on a annuai kmsis. The Coupon shall be applicatle on and
from the date of issuance of the CCDs urtil the date of conversion of the CCD, or end of he CCD Tenure, whichever is earlier. Each CCD shall have a tenure of 2 (iwo) years from the date of
issuance. The CCDs shall not have any voting rights until conversion thereof into Equity Shares. CCD shell be converted into Equity Shares in the ratio of 1:1 at anytime prior 1o the CCD Tenure
o Retained eamings
Relained eamings are the profits ihat the Company has eamed tifl date less any transfers to General Reserve, div or other distr to hold:
inchsdes re-measurement loss/(gain) on defined benefil plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to slalement of profit and loss. Retained eamings s a free reserve available
to the Company.
(¢in 000)
31 Mar 21 01 Apr 20
Opening balance {2,41,532.88) (1,78,850.12)  (1,78,850.12)
Add: Profil/{Loss) during ihe year (80,807.19) (63,086.78) -
Less: Transition impaci of Ind AS 118 - 384.00 -
| 13,22,340.07) (2,41,632.88)  {1,78,850.12)
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14. Borrowings

for the year ended 31 March 2022

Borrowings- current {(¥in oon)
31 Mar 2 01 Apr 2¢
Al amorlised cost
Unsecured
Loan From Holding Company 4% 500.00 - F
Term loans from Caspian Impact Invesiments Privale Limited 5,045.680 4.865.51
Term loans from other parlies = 2.97 2.97
Loan from direciors = | 4,337.62 108.31
Cash credil from banks = | 16,112,60 15,278.16
|
| 45,500.00 2549078 20,254.95
a Reconciliation of movement in borrowings to cash flows from financing activities 31 Mar 22 31 Mar 21 01 Apr 20
Opening Balance 25408.70 20,254.95
(Repaymenl) / Proceeds of shorl lerm borowings 20,001.21 5,243.84
Closing Balance 45,500.00 25,458.79 20,254.95
15. Trade payables
(% in 000)
31 Mar 2t 01 Apr 20
At Amortused Cost
Total outstanding dues of micra and small enterprises | - 1,316.22 501.01
| s 1,316.22 601.91
Total outsianding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises
Other than acceptances
Trede payables - Others (Refer nole below) 2,380.30 10,532.88 18,683.56
2,380.39 11.845.10 18, 18547
Notes:-
{a) Others includes amouni payable 1o vendors, employees liability and accrual of expenses that are expecied o be settled in the Company's normal operating cydle or due to be
setiled within twelve months from the reporling date,
{b) For explanations an the Company'’s liquidity risk management processes Refer note 32.
(c) Trade Payables ageing schedule
As at 31 Mar 22 |¥ in COG)
Not due
(i) Others
Acceplances = - - -
Otherthan acceptlances 1,204.30 1,186.08 2,380.39
(i) Disputed dues - MSME - - P = -
(V) Disputed dues - Others - - - - =
= 1,204.30 - * 1,186.09 2,390.39
As at 31 March 21 (2 in 000)
Not Due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment TOTAL
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 years
@©® MSME 1,316.22 1,316.22
(i) Others
Acceplances =
Other than acceplances 7,576.88 1,801.05 40.02 824,84 10,532.88
(iii) Dispuled dues - MSME -
(i) Disputed dues - Others -
- 8,893.20 1,991.05 40,02 924.84 11,849.10
46. Other financial liabililies- cument (2in 000)
31 Mar 21 01 Apr 20
At Amortised Cost
Interest accrued bui nol due T19.88 - 64.30
719.89 - 64.30
17. Other liabilities
Other liabililies- current {%in 000)
31 Mar 21 01 Apr 20
Advance from customers 613017 8,220.55 2,861.82
Other payables | 5877177 26,044.88 -
Other statutory dues |
ies and Employer C: | 53387 = -
Taxes Payable (Otherthan income tax) EB4.82 4,821.31 5,308.34
| 1342643 | 37,086.55 8.260.16
18. Provisions
A Provisions- non-current (¥ in 000)
T v 01 Apr 20
Provision for employee benefits (Refer nole 23)
Gratuity 6,614.00 5,323.00 5,830.00
| §,614.00 5,323.00 6,930.00
B Provisions- currenl {%in 000)
31 Mar 21 01 Apr 20
Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 23)
Gratuity 1,126,060 2,146.00 796.00
| 1,126.00 2,146.00 796.00
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19. Revenue from operations

20.

21,

22.

23.

(% in 000)
31 Mar 21

Revenue on Sale of Products
Finished goods 18,032.30 8,510.96

18,032.30 8,510.96
Other operating revenue
Job work income 4,148.44 6,330.63
Total revenue from contracts with customers 22,180.74 14,841.59
Total R from operati 22,180.74 14,841.59

(@) Trade receivables are usually non-interest bearing and are generally on credit terms up to 90 days. Evaluation is made as per the terms of the
contract i.e. if the Company does not retain any risk and rewards or control over the financial assets, then the entity derecognises such assets upon
transfer of financial assets under such arrangement with the banks.

(b) As on 31 March 2022, 2 customers contributed more than 10% each to the Total Revenue from operations

Otherincome
(% in 000)
31 Mar 21
Miscellaneous income 52.32 | 15.16
52.32 | 15.16
Cost of materials consumed (% in 000)
m 31 Mar 21
Inventories at the beginning of the year 1,993.03 6,547.83
Add: Purchases 9,037.74 2,374.57
11,030.77 8,922.40
Less: Inventories at the end of the year 20.12 1,993.03
11,010.656 6,928.37
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress (% in 000)

EEETITEER 31 Mar21

Inventory at the beginning of the year

Finished goods 3,995.35 12,812.91

Stock-in-trade 382.76 3,334.49
4,378.11 16,147.40

Inventory at the end of the year

Finished goods 4,283.32 3,995.35

Stock-in-trade 950.45 382.76
5,233.77 4,378.11

Changes in Inventories (855.88) 11,769.29

Employee benefits expense

(% in 000)
31 Mar 21
Salaries, wages and bonus | 36,925.01 15,771.53
Contribution to provident and other funds | 6,514.97 2,534.61
Staff welfare expense | 789.13 | -
Expenses on Employee Stock Option Scheme = 7.500.00
44,229.11 | 25,806.14
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23. Employee benefits expense

Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans
(A) Defined Benefit plan

Gratuity Valuation - As per actuary

In respect of Gratuity, the Company makes annual contribution to the employee group gratuity scheme of the Life Insurance Corporation of India,
funded defined benefits plan for qualified employees. The scheme provided for lump sum payments to vested employees at retirement, death while
in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary for each completed year of service or part thereof in
excess of six months. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The Company has provided for gratuity based on the actuarial
valuation done as per Project Unit Credit Method.

Defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risks such as

(i) Interestrate risk
Afallin the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the
discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset.

(i) Salary Risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase in the
salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

(i) InvestmentRisk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference ta market yields at
the end of the reporting period on govemment bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the
plan in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other debt instruments.

(iv) Asset Liability Matching Risk
The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this
generally reduces ALM risk.

(v) Mortality risk
Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity risk. If actual
mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality rate assumption than the gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is
no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cashflow will lead to an actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values
of the assumed salary growth and discount rate.

(vi) Concentration Risk
Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company and a default will wipe out all the assets.
Although probability of this is very less as insurance companies have to follow regulatory guidelines.

(vii) Variability in withdrawal rates
If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption then the gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected.
The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation date.

(viiii) Regulatory Risk
Gratuity Benefit must comply with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended up-to-date). There is a risk of change in
the regulations requiring higher gratuity payments.

A separate trust fund is created to manage the Gratuity plan and the contributions towards the trust fund is done as guided by rule 103 of Income
Tax Rules, 1962.

The Company operates a defined benefit plan, viz., gratuity for its employees. Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has completed at least
five years of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded with an
insurance company in the form of gualifying insurance policy.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of defined obligation were carried out as at 31st March, 2022 an
external independent fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of India. The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current service
cost were measured using the projected unit credit method.
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23. Employee benefits expense

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and

amounts recognized in the balance sheet for gratuity.

Statement of profit and loss

Net employee benefits expense recognised in profit or loss: (% in 000)
Year ended Year ended
Current service cost 1,021.00 745.00
Net interest cost 417.00 411.00
Past service cost 1,000.00 -
Net benefits expense 2,438.00 1,156.00
Net remeasurement (gain)/ loss on defined benefit plans recognised in Other comprehensive income for the year: (¥ in 000)
Year ended Year ended
31 Mar 22 31 Mar 21
Actuarial (gain) /loss on obligations 2,269.00 (422.00)
(Retumn)/Loss on plan assets, excluding interest income 28.00 38.00
Net (Income)/Expense for the year recognized in OCI 2,297.00 (384.00)
Balance sheet
Benefits liability (¥ in000)
31 Mar 22 31 Mar 21
Present value of defined benefit obligation 7,845.00 7,570.00
Fair value of plan assets 105.00 101.00
Plan liability 7,740.00 7,469.00
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: (% in 000)
31 Mar 22 31 Mar 21
Opening defined benefit obligation 7,570.00 6,830.00
Interest cost 424.00 417.00
Current service cost 1,021.00 745.00
Past service cost - -
Benefits paid (3,439.00) -
Acluarial (gains)losses on obligations - =
Due to change in financial assumptions (174.00) 160.00
Due to experience 2,443.00 (582.00)
Closing defined benefit obligation 7,845.00 | 7,570.00
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows: (Z in 000)
Year ended Year ended
Opening fair value of plan assets | 101.00 | 104.00
Interest Income | 7.00 | 6.00
Contribution by employer | 3,464.00 | 29.00
Benefits paid | (3,439.00)| -
Actuarial gains | (28.00) (38.00)
Closing fair value of plan assets | 105.00 101.00
The Company expects to contribute ¥ 1000 thousands to gratuity in the next year (31 March 2021: ¥ 1000 thousands).
Current & non-current bifurcation of provision for gratuity as per actuarial valuation is as follows:
(T in 000)
Year ended Year ended
31 Mar 22 31 Mar 21
Non-current . 5,323.00
Current 2,146.00
The major categories of plan ts as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:
Year ended
31 Mar 21
Investment with insurer 100.00%
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company's plans are shown below:
Year ended
31 Mar 22 31 Mar 21
Discount rate 5.6%p.a.
Expected rate of retum on plan assets | 5.6%p.a. 6.1% p.a.
Employee tumover | 15%p.a. | 15%p.a.
Salary escalation | 7% p.a. | 7% p.a.
Weighted average duration | 4.5 years | 4.5 years
Mortality rate during employment IALM(EJ?:)Z <14 | 1ALM (fj?lj)z -4
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23. Employee benefits expense
The average expected future service as at 31 March 2022 is 4.5 years (31 March 2021 - 4.5 years).
The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors,
such as supply and demand in the employment market.
The overall expected rate of retum on plan assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which
the obligation is to be settled.

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31 March 2022 is as shown below:

Sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and
changes in some of the assumptions may be co-related. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined benefit obtigation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

Sensitivity analysis (¥ in 000)

Year ended Year ended
31 Mar 22 31 Mar21

Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions

Delta effect of +1% change in rate of discounting | +459 ’ +311
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of discounting [ -423 -347
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of salary increase ] +416 | +339
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of salary increase | -459 | -310
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of employee turover | +31 ‘ +31
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of employee turnover | -33 -34

{B) Other Defined Benefit and contribution Plans

Provident Fund

The Company contribute towards Provident Fund to defined contribution retirement benefit plans for eligible employees. Under the schemes, the
Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company contributes towards Provident Fund
managed by Central Government and has recognised ¥ 2,876.55 thousands (31st March 2021 - ¥ 1,791.61 thousands) for provident fund contributions
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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24. Finance cost

(% in 000)
31 Mar 29
Interest expense on financial liabilities at amortised cost 3,834.38 | 2,963.88
Other bormowing costs - 493.15
3,834.38 | 3,457.03
25. Depreciation and amortisation expenses (% in 000}
31 Mar 21
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer note 3) 66.31 72.66
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 5) 2247313 59.43
22,539.44 132.09
26. Other expenses (% in 000)
31Mar 21
Consumption of stores and spares | 245.90 182.05
Rent | 2,231.48 2,837.68
Rates and taxes | 775.74 257.79
Insurance | 2360 | 47.20
Repairs and maintenance |
Plant and machinery | - 120.82
Others | 80.85 322,30
Advertising and sales promotion 137.17 5.00
Travelling and conveyance 1,164.49 292.46
Communication Cost 368.42 303.23
Legal and professional fees 15,296.35 2,408.90
Freight & forwarding expenses 52.89 20.06
Payment to auditor (Refer note (a) below) 230.00 100.00
Impaiment allowance for trade receivable considered doubtful (Refer note 6) N 15,783.52
Bad Debts 13,828.19 462.27
Less: Impairment provision written back during the year (13,393.67) -
434,52 462.27
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,240.92 | 2,054.80
22,282.33 | 25,198.08
Notes:
(a) Payments to auditor: (¥ in 000)
EEITTE 3t Mar 21
As auditor | |
(i) Auditfee 150.00 | 100.00
(i) Certification fees - -
(iii) Other Matters 80.00 -
230.00 | 100.00
27. Earnings per share
(a) Basic Earnings per share
31 Mar 21
Profit/(Loss) after taxation ¥ in 000 A | (83,104.19) | (62,682.76)
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic eaming per share * Number B | 1,01,956.00 | 1,01,856.00
Earnings per shares - Basic (one equity share of 10 each) ¥ in 000 per share (A/B) | (0.32)| {0.61)

(b

Diluted Earnings per share

The Company has outstanding Compulsorily convertible preference shares as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 and Compulsorily convertible
debentures as at 31 March 2022 . Since the Company has net loss for the current and previous year, the effect of these potential equity shares will be

anti-diluted, hence Diluted Eamings per share is considered same as Basic Eamings per share
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28. Contingent liabilities and commitments
There are no Contingent Laibilities and Capital Commitments as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021
29. Related party disclosure
The transaclions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those thal prevail in amm's length transactions. Outstanding balances at the
period-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash or credit as per the terms of the amrangement.
(a)  Related Parties
(i) Holding Company:
Polycab India Limited w.e.f. 18.06.2021
(i) Keymanagement personnel
Gitidhar Krishna Mamidipudi - up to December 31, 2021 Director
Ajay Gupta- w.e.f. December 27, 2021 Director
Avinash Kumar Gautam - up to January 12, 2021 Director
Mohan Gopalakrishna, Director-up to June 18, 2021 Director
Manoj Verma- Director w.e.f June 18, 2021 - up to March 31,2021 Director
Bindimgnavile Seshadri Praveen- Director w.e.f June 18, 2021 Director
{b) Transactions with Holding Company during the year
(i) Borrowings- Intercorporate deposites taken- Rs 45,500 thousands
(i) Compulsory Convertible Debenture (CCD) issued - Rs. 78,070 thousands
(iii) Interest Expenses on Loan - Rs 2,904.50 thousands
{iv) Interest Expenses on Compulsory Convertible Debenture (CCD) - Rs 5.84 thousands
(v} Rentexpense-Rs. 667.43 thousands
(e)  Closing Balance as at 31 March 2022
(i) Borrowings- Intercorporate deposites- Rs 45,500 thousands
(ii) Interest payable on Loan & CCD - Rs 719.31 thousands
(d) Transactions with KMP:
(i) Borrowings- Transactions during the period/year (¥ in 000)
| 3imarz2  [EETENSY
Giridhar Krishna Mamidipudi
Opening Balance 3,962.60 50.00
Taken during the year 411.23 4,983.20
Repaid during the year 4,373.83 1,070.60
Closing Balance - 3,962.60
Mohan Gopalakrishna
Opening Balance 375.02 -
Taken during the year - 375.02
Repaid during the year 375.02 -
Closing Balance - 375.02
{(iil) Remuneration paid for the period/year ended and outstanding as on: % in 0CO)
31 Mar 21
Giridhar Krishna Mamidipudi 2,956.80 1,707.52
Mohan Gopalakrishna 556.80 | 1,707.52
Ajay Gupta 1.756.80 | -
| 5,270.40 | 3,415.04
Note: As the liabilities for gratuity and leave encashment are provided on actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the amounts
pertaining to the directors and KMP are not included above.
30 (A) Segmentreporting

The Company is predominantly engaged in the business of facilitate development and maintenance of business and software applications on all
popular and mainframe and minicompuler platforms and to carry on the work of development of software and related services in all kinds. As such
there are no separate reportable segmenits, as per the Ind-AS 108 on Operating Segment.

The Company’s operalions are mainly confined in India. The Company does not have material eamings from business segment outside India. As
such, there are no reportable geographical segments.

Information about Major Customer: Revenue from operations for the year include Rs. 10,143.67 thousands (Previous Year Rs 7,491.85
thousands) from two customer (Previous Year: two customer) having more than 10% of the total revenue
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30(B) Additional Regulatory Information

Ratios Numerator Denominator EEEITTETE  31Mar2q

Current Ratio (in times) Total Cument Assets Tolal Cumrent Liabiliies 0.25 0.17
Debt consists of borrowings and
Debt-Equity Ratio (in times) lease liabilities. Total Equity 1.18 0.59

Eaming for Debt Service = Net
Profit after taxes + Non-cash
operating expenses + Interest + Debi service = Interest and lease

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (in times) Other non-cash adjustments payments + Principal repayments
Profit for the year less Preference

Return on Equity Ratio (in %) dividend (if any) Average total equity =216% -144%
Inventory tumover ratio {in times) Cost of Goods Sold Average Inventory 175 1.61
Trade Receivables tumover ratio (in times) Revenue from operations Average trade receivables 475 1.19
Trade payables tumover ratio (in times) Net credit purchases Average trade payables 1.27 0.15
Net capital turnover ratio (in times) Revenue from operations Average Working capital -0.47 -0.23
Net profit ratio (in %) Profit for the year Revenue from operations -363%)| -424%

Capital employed = Net worth +
Profit before tax and finance costs Lease liabilities + Deferred tax
Return on Capital employed (in %) liabiliies -200% -137%
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3.

A}

32,

Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurement
Financial Instruments
Fair value measurements

The Company financial i such as, derivatives, mutual funds etc. at fair value at each Balance sheet date, Fair velue is the price ihat would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liahility
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurament dafe. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaclion to sell the asset ortvansfer(he liability takes place either

(@) Inthe principal markel for the asset or liability, or
(b) Inthe absence of a principal markel, in the most advanlageaus market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company,
The fair value of an assst or a liability is d using the i Lhat market icip: would use when pricing the asset or liability, ing that market ici actin their ic bestinterest

The Company uses i i that are appropriate in the cil and for which ient dala are available to fair value, imising the use of relevanl observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statemenls are categorised within the fair value hi y to provide an indication about the reliability of inputs used in
determining fair value, the Company hes classified its financial statements into three levels p i under tha i as follaws, based on the lowest lavel input that is significant to the fair value
Measuremant 3s-a whols

* Level 1 —Quoted (unadjusled} market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
*  Level 2— Valuation techmgues for whah the lewest level input that is significant lo the fair value is directly or indi y
*  Level 3— Valuation techniques for which lhe lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assels and liabilities on the basis of lhe nalure, characteristics and risk of tha assets or liability and the level of fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

Set out below, is a comparison by dass of the carrying amounls and fair value of the Company's financial instruments, other than those with carrying amounis that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Carmrying value Fair valus
30-Jun-21 31 Nar 21 1-apr2e LT 30-dun-2t 31 Mar 21 1-Apr-20
Fnancial assets
Neasursd at amortised cost [
Trade receivables 7,593.68 582.08 2,168.69 27,997,83 7,503.68 562.08 2,160.88 27,907.83
Cash and cash equivalents 250.52 11,886.56 2683.72 37.51 250.52 11,986.56 263.72 37.51
Other financial assels 140.00 | 782.72 782,72 4,635.66 140.00 782.72 78272 4,635,66
7,984.20 ] 13,331.36 3,216.13 32,671.00 7,984.20 13,331.36 3,216.13 32,671.00

Financial labilithes
Measured at amartised cost |
Borrowings - long term induding current maturities and 45,500.00 | 788.20 25,498.79 20 254,85 45,500.00 786.90 25,498.78 20,254,085
Trade payables 2,380.39 | 21,859.38 37,893.79 19,185 48 | 2,380.39 21,858.36 37,883.79 19,185.48
Other financial liabilities 710.89 550.00 - 64.30 719.89 550.00 = 84,30

48,610.28 23,199.26 63,392.58 as,su.?z| 48,610.28 23,199.26 63,392.68 39,604.72
{a) The management assessed that cash and cash equi , trade i trade p , short-term ings, loans to related party, loans to employees, short term security deposit and other current

liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments,

is included at the amount at which the instrument could ba ina current ion between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale,

{b) The fair value of Lhe financial assets and liabil

Fi ial Risk M. Objecti And Policies

The Company's principal financial liabililies, other than derivatives, comprise leans and borrowings and trade and ofher payables. The main purpase of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operalions
and 1o pravide guarantees lo support its operations. The Company's principal financial assels include loans, irade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalenls that derive directly from its operations. The
Company also holds FVTPL invesiments and enters into derivative transaclions,

The Company Is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk The Board of Directors of the Company has formed a Risk Ci il to periodi review lhe risk management policy of lhe
Company so that the management manages the risk through properly defined ism The Risk G ittee's focus is lo foresee the unpredictability and minimize potential adverse effacis on the
Company's financial performance. The Company's overall risk p l to minimise the potential adverse effecis of financial market on the Company's performance are as follows:
(A) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuale because of changes in market prices. Market risk comiprises threa types of risk interest rate rick, currency risk
and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk indude loans and borrowings, deposits, FyTHL and d financal instn.
{I) Interest rate rink

Interestrate rick ie 1he riek that the fair value or future cash flows of a finandal instrument will fluciuate because of changes in market inlerest rates, The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interesi rates retates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations wth floaling interest rates. The Company is also exposed 1o Ihe risk of changes in market interest rates relates due to its
investments in mutual fund units in overnight funds.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings. The Company entars into imerest rate swaps for long term foreign currency barrowings, in which it
agrees o exchange, at specified intervals, he difference batween fixed and variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference 1o an agreed-upon nofional principal amaunt. Al 31 March 2022, All 100%
of the Company's barrowings are al a fixed rale of interest (31 March 2021: 24%).

lmuns(ﬂte sensitivity

The folt g table d ates the ilivity lo @ possible change in interest rales on that portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounling. With all other
variables hald constant, the Company's profil before tax is affected through the impact on floaling rate borrowings. as follows:

31 Mar 22
Increase - +200 {810)
Decrease - -200 910
31 Mar 21 25,499
Increase 200 1510]
Decrease -200 509,8758

(i) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is lhe risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will flucluate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foraign
exchange rates relates pnmerily to the Company's operaling activilies (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency) and the Company's borrowings in fareign currency. The Company
does not have any raceivable and payable in Foreign currency as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021
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32 Fi ial Risk Manag, Objectives And Policies
(B} Crodit risk
Credil risk is tha risk Ihat counterparty will nol meet ils obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, Iaadlng to a financial loss. The Cnmpany is axposed to credit risk from ils operating
activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial inslil foreign and other financial instruments

©

Trade recoivables and contract assets

The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with counlerparties that have sufficient credit rating. The Company's exposure and credit ralings of ils ies are i i and the
g value of d is ly spread amongst the counterpariies. Credit risk has always been threugh credit app ishing credit limits and conlinuously monitoring the

credit warthiness of customers to which the Company granis credit terms in the normal course of business. On account of adop(mn of Ind AS 109. the Company uses sxpected credit loss model to assess

the impairmenl loss or gain. The Company has applied Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for and i losses on trade receivables. ECL has been computed as a

percentage of revenue on the basis of Company's historical data of delay in collection of amounts due from cuslumers and defaull by the along with ‘s

The Company has sold without recourse trade receivable under channel finance arrengement for providing credil lo ils dealers. Evaluation is made as per the terms of the conirad! i.e. if the Company does
not retain any risk and rewards or control over the financial assets, then the enlity derecognises such assets upon transfer of financial assets under such arrangement with the banks. Derecognition does nat
resull in significant gain / loss to the Company in the Statement of profit and loss.

The Company closely monitors its customers who are going threugh financial stress and assesses actions such as change in payment terms, di ing of r with instituti on no-recourss

basis, ition of revenue on ion basis etc ing on severity of each case, The collactions pattern from the customers in the currenl period does not indicate stress bsyond what has been

faciored while ing the for ued‘rt losses,

Other financizl asssts

The Company has. adopted a pollcy of only dealing with counterparties that have sutficient credit rating, The Company's exposure and credit ratings of its ies are i i and the
ggregate value of spread amongst the counterparties,

Credit risk arising from investment in mutual tunds, ivative financial i and other with barks is limited and there is no collateral held against these because lhe counterparties are

banks and recognised financial inslilutions with high credit ralings assigned by the international credtt rating agencies,

Liquidity risk

The Company’s principle sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flew hat is generated from operations. The Company believes that lhe working capral is sufficient to meet its
current requiremeants.

Further, the Company manages its liquidity risk in a manner so as to maet its normal financal obligations without any sagmncanl delay or stress. Such risk is managed through ensuring operational cash

Mlow while at the sama lime maintaining adequate cash and cash equival position. The has for i funding sources and adopted a policy of managing assets with liquidily
in mind and monitoring fulure cash flows and liquidity on a regular basis. Surplus funds not immediately required are invesied in certain financial assets (including mutual funds) which provide flexibilty to
liqudate ai shorl notice and are included in current i and cash i Besides, it hes certain undrawn credi facilities which can be accessed as and when required, which are
reviewed periodically.

The Company has deveioped appropriate inernal conirol systems and contingency plans for managing liquidity risk. This it P an of cash flows and aveilability of alternative
sources for additional funding, if required.

Maturity Analysis

The lable befow summarises the maturity profile of the Caompany's finandal liatilities based on

31st March 2022 31 Mar21 01 Apr20
> squal to > squal to > equal to
oyl <1 ymar 1yaar Total <1 year 1 yoar Total
Borrowings 25,499 - 25,499 20,255 . 20,255
Other financial liabilities 720 + 720 - = = 64 % 64
Trade payables 2390 - 2,390 37,894 - 37,894 19,185 - 18,185
48,610 = 48,610 63391 - £3,383 39,5058 = 30,506
33. Capital management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital managcmam capital includes issued equily capital, securities premium and all other equily reserves attribulable to the equity The primary objective is to
value, inuity and support the growth of the Company. The Company determines the capital requirement based on annual operaling plans and long-lerm and
olher stralagle investiment plans. The funding requiremerts are met through equity, operating cash flows g and external gt
The Company ils capital and makes adj in light of changes in i i and he requis of ihe financial cavenants. To maintain or adjusl the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, retumn capital to shareholders or issus new shares,
The capital isg by pdiicies appr by the Board of Directors and monitars capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus nel debt
31 Mar 21 01 Apr 20
Debts 45,500.00( 25,498.7¢ 20,254,985
Equity 3B,485.45 43,519.64 1,06,202.38
Total capital B3,085.45 66,018.43 1,26,457.33
Debts 45,500,00 25,498,789 20,254.95
Gearing ratio 54.18%| 36.94% 16.02%
In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims o ensure that it meals financial tothei ing loans and ings that
define capital structure requirements. As on March 31, 2022 the company had borrowings only from its holding company
No changes were made in the objeclives, policies or pi for ing capital during the year ended 31 Mar 2022 and 31 March 2021
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34 First time adoption of Ind AS
Pursuanttothe C ies (Indian ) Rules, 2015, the Company has adopled 31 Mar 2022 as reporting date for first lime adoption of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind-AS) and consequenily
April 1, 2020 as the ition dale for p ion of financial The financial statements for the yaar ended March 31, 2022, are the first finandals, prepared in accordance with Ind-AS. Upta the
Financial year ended March 31, 2021, the Company prepared ils financial statements in accordance with pravious GAAP. including accounting standards nolified under the Companies {Accounting Standarq)
Rule, 2006 For preparing ihese financial statements, opening balance sheet was prepared as at April 1, 2020 i.e. the date of transition to ind-AS. The figures for the year ended March 31, 2021 have been
restaled, regrouped and i required to comply with Ind-AS and Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 and to make them comparable,

In the preparalion of these Ind-AS Financial Statements, the Company has made several presentalion dilferences between previous GAAP and Ind-AS. These differences have no impact on reported profit or

1otal equity. Accordingly, some assats and liabililies have been reciassified ima anolher line item under Ind-AS at the date of Iransition Further, in these Financial Statements, some line ilsms are described

differontly under Ind-AS compared to previous GAAF, although the assets and liabilities induded in these line items are unatfecied.

Consequent o the adoption of Ind-AS, the Company undericok a detailed svaluation of its Non-current assels, Irade raceivables, other current assels and currant liabilities and provisions under Indian GAAP as

al the date of transition being April 1, 2020, These assels and liabililies were for future ic benelils to Aaw lo the Company or calledion or payment expected over the peried of time in
with Ind-AS principals. Ind-AS requires of pravision for credit lass 1o be i with tothe credit loss model

35 Events after the reporting period
No significant adjusting event occurred between the balance sheel dale and date of lhe approval of these financial slatements by the Board of Directors of the Company requiring adjustment or disclosure.
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